
1

Contact Officer: Maureen Potter
01352 702322 
maureen.potter@flintshire.gov.uk

To: Cllr Ian Roberts (Chairman)

Councillors: Marion Bateman, Paul Cunningham, Peter Curtis, Adele Davies-
Cooke, Andy Dunbobbin, David Healey, Ray Hughes, Colin Legg, Phil Lightfoot, 
Dave Mackie, Nancy Matthews, Vicky Perfect, Nigel Steele-Mortimer and 
Carolyn Thomas

Co-opted Members
Janine Beggan, David Hytch, Rebecca Stark, Bernard Stuart and Rev. John 
Thelwell  

23 December 2015
Dear Councillor

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Education and Youth Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee which will be held at 10.00 am on Wednesday, 6th January, 2016 in the 
Council Chamber, County Hall, Mold CH7 6NA to consider the following items

A G E N D A 

1 APOLOGIES 
Purpose: To receive any apologies.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING 
DECLARATIONS) 
Purpose: To receive any Declarations and advise Members accordingly.

3 SCHOOL MODERNISATION - SCHOOL STANDARDS AND 
REORGANISATION ACTION 2013 - YSGOL MAES EDWIN (Pages 3 - 226)

Report of Chief Officer (Education and Youth) - Cabinet Member for Education

Purpose: To consult with the Committee on the outcome of the 
consultation process for school organisational change at Ysgol 
Maes Edwin 

Yours faithfully

Peter Evans
Democracy & Governance Manager 





 EDUCATION & YOUTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Wednesday 6th January, 2016 

Report Subject School Modernisation – School Standards and 
Reorganisation action 2013 – Ysgol Maes Edwin

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Education

Report Author Chief Officer (Education and Youth)

Type of Report Strategic 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

To inform Education and Youth Overview & Scrutiny Committee of responses from 
the statutory consultation period for the proposal to close Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint 
Mountain.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 Education and Youth Overview & Scrutiny Committee is requested to 
consider the responses from the statutory consultation period for Ysgol 
Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain. 



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 BACKGROUND AND CONSIDERATIONS

1.01

1.02

1.04

1.05

1.06

1.07

In June 2015, the Cabinet determined that we enter into formal 
consultation on closure and other school organisation options for Ysgol 
Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain by September 2016.

The proposal was put forward on the basis of criteria laid down in the 
Council’s School Modernisation Strategy, namely:

 Unfilled places across the primary school portfolio – Ysgol Maes 
Edwin, Flint Mountain as at January 2015 (PLASC) had 66 full time 
pupils with unfilled places of 13.16%.  As of September 2015 the 
school population has 55 full time pupils with unfilled places at 
27.63%;

 Diminishing resource criteria (i.e. schools supported by pupils not 
from their local community and/or small numbers within the 
community raise concern regarding sustainability within the school’s 
portfolio) - 83.63% of pupils attending Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint 
Mountain are not attending their local school;

 Small School Criteria – The School population and capacity of 
Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain is lower than national designation 
of a small school, additionally school numbers do not meet the 
minimum requirements of primary school models as noted in the 
Council’s School Modernisation Strategy, and

 Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain is currently (July 2015) in Welsh 
Government categorisation 4, on a scale of 1 - 4, with 4 being the 
lowest for educational standards.  

The formal consultation period for Ysgol Maes Edwin commenced on 
Wednesday 21 October 2015 and ended on Wednesday 2 December 
2015.

The Council has issued consultation documents in accordance with the 
statutory School Organisation Code. 

Reviewing the future of any school is controversial and emotive. Pupils, 
parents, carers and teachers, past and present, have strong ties to local 
schools as part of their own life-stories. The Council is challenged with 
balancing the sensitivities of community feeling on the one hand, with 
providing a high quality education offer which can be sustained and 
afforded. The Council cannot avoid making decisions for the future which 
are in the best interests of pupils and students.

During the consultation responses from the pupils, community, staff, 
parents and carers have focused on the following concerns, in summary:

• impact on pupils/transition/friendship groups;
• impact on community; 



1.08

1.09

1.10

1.11

1.12

1.13

1.14

1.15

• impact of housing developments in the area;
• accuracy of data contained within the consultation documents;
• capacity of other schools in the area to accommodate pupils;
• admissions to other schools should Ysgol Maes Edwin close
• transport. 

Responses also focus on the strengths of the school, such as the family 
ethos, the condition of the building and the inclusive nature of the school.

As part of the consultation the views of children and young people have 
been sought. The Pupils of Ysgol Maes Edwin do not want their school to 
close. They have expressed concern that peer groups and siblings will be 
split up and that their emotional welfare has not been taken into 
consideration. Other nearby school councils consulted wanted to make 
Ysgol Maes Edwin pupils welcome and hoped to make new friends should 
the school close (see Appendix 2 Consultation Report).

An alternative suggestion of federation has been suggested by a number 
of consultees, notably the governing body. They wish for Cabinet to use 
powers to promote a federation with another school or schools. The 
Governing Body of a maintained school can also promote a federation. At 
the time of writing, the Governing body of Ysgol Maes Edwin has not been 
able to identify a willing partnering school or schools with which to pursue 
a federation. The prospect of developing a successful federation without a 
willing partner or partners is minimal.

School organisation consultation documents are subject to rigorous 
compliance checks prior to their publication, which includes verifying 
information provided by the schools and national sources (see Appendix 1- 
Compliance Statement).

The Local Authority would take all practicable steps to ease the transition 
for all pupils, most especially for vulnerable groups of learners such as 
Additional Learning Needs (ALN).  Should the proposal be implemented 
the Council would work alongside pupils, their parents and the relevant 
schools to make appropriate transition arrangements for pupils to 
familiarise themselves with their new environments (subject to parental 
preference).

The Local Authority has fully considered school capacity and potential 
housing development yield within its consultation documents.
 
Data regarding potential pupils which could be generated from new 
housing developments is calculated using a housing yield formula.  The 
housing yield formula has been derived from research work from a 
partnering authority.  This was applied to all current housing development 
planning applications approved by the planning authority.

The housing yield figures produced are a maximum figure and do not take 
into account parental choice and/or pupil movement i.e. pupils moving into 
the new homes but who are already in the local education system.



1.16

1.17

1.18

1.19

1.20

1.21

1.22

The pace of housing developments will be constrained by the plans of the 
site owners/developers, the housing market, current economic climate and 
other factors which are unpredictable.

It is the Local Authority’s view that there is sufficient capacity within the 
local school network to accommodate pupils from Ysgol Maes Edwin 
should it close.  Estyn have commented that ‘The local authority has given 
a clear rationale for the proposed expected benefits when compared with 
the status quo in relation to finance, surplus places and the continuity and 
progression in pupils’ learning.’

Under current transport policy fewer than ten pupils would be entitled to 
free home to school transport based on the assumption they transfer to 
their nearest school Ysgol Owen Jones, Northop. This would be on the 
basis that the route to the alternative school from Flint Mountain would be 
considered to be hazardous due to its rural location which has limited 
footpaths in and out of the village.

At the time of writing the admissions team have approved fifteen 
applications from Ysgol Maes Edwin pupils wishing to transfer to other 
schools in line with the Council’s Admissions Policy. A mini admissions 
process will be administered to assist families in transition to other school 
should cabinet determine closure.

The community impact assessment has identified the impact of closure on 
a small number of local families and on the local community. The loss of 
the school would impact on a small number of community activities taking 
place and the range of community facilities within Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint 
Mountain.  

The Council has no plans for the school site should the school close. In 
line with established practice, future usage of the school site will only be 
determined following confirmation that the school site is no longer required 
for educational purposes.  

Estyn has provided its statutory response to the consultation. It is Estyn’s 
view that this proposal is likely to at least maintain the present standards of 
education provision in the area. They noted that consultation 
documentation appropriately set out the advantages of the proposal, which 
include the efficient and effective use of resources; a reduction of unfilled 
pupil places within the primary school network; at least maintaining the 
current standards and the quality of education in the area; and the 
reduction in travel to school for the majority of pupils should they choose 
their local school.

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 There is sufficient team capacity to prepare the detailed transition plans for 
students.



2.02

2.03

Should the current proposals be implemented, the Council will work with 
the current members of staff at Ysgol Maes Edwin, including teaching and 
support staff, should they seek redeployment opportunities. Staff displaced 
by the proposal may have the opportunity to be employed in the local 
primary network. 

The estimated annual costs of transport as a result of the proposal are 
£9,120. However, actual transport costs can only be assessed once all 
families have chosen their preferred school.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 If the Cabinet decision is to proceed, the Council will publish a Statutory 
notice providing a 28 day notice period for objections. If objections are 
received, the Council must publish an objection report providing a 
summary of the objections and their responses to them within 28 days of 
the end of the objection period.

4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 A Programme Board is set up to oversee the implementation business 
plans and manage risks in close detail. Reports are made to Cabinet and 
Overview and Scrutiny at key stages of decision-taking, performance 
reporting and evaluation.

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix 1 – Compliance statement
Appendix 2 – Consultation report
Appendix 3 – Estyn response
Appendix 4 – Statutory proposal anticipated timeline

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 All responses from the consultation period (and responses received before 
the consultation period) are available in the members’ library.

Contact Officer: Damian Hughes
Senior Manager, School Planning and Provision

Telephone: 01352 704135
E-mail: Damian.hughes@flintshire.gov.uk



7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 (1) PLASC – The Welsh Government Pupil Level Annual School Census is 
mandatory with returns for all sectors required every January including 
nursery, primary, middle, secondary and special. Returns are required 
every January.

(2) School Organisation Code – The new School Standards and 
Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 makes Local Authorities responsible (rather 
than the Welsh Ministers prior to October 2013) for the determination of 
most statutory school organisation proposals that receive objections.  Such 
provisions apply to any proposals published on or after 1st October 2013 
that consider the establishment, discontinuance or otherwise significantly 
alter schools.

The Council does this in line with the Welsh Government’s statutory 
School Organisation Code

http://wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/130719-school-organisation-
codes-en.pdf

(3) Estyn - Estyn is the education and training inspectorate for Wales. 
Estyn is responsible for inspecting primary and secondary schools and 
nursery schools maintained by, or receive funding from local authorities.

(4) Federation – The federation of schools is a legal process which 
enables schools to work together through a formal structured process by 
sharing a governing body that will make decisions in the best interest of all 
the schools, staff and pupils in that federation.

The Welsh Government have brought in new regulations around federation 
of maintained schools in Wales. The Federation of Maintained Schools 
(Wales) Regulations 2014 which came into force on 22 May 2014 gives 
effect to Council’s powers to federate schools. (School governors already 
have powers to federate by choice under provisions introduced in 2010). 
These powers have now been consolidated into the 2014 Regulations.

http://wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/130719-school-organisation-codes-en.pdf
http://wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/130719-school-organisation-codes-en.pdf
http://wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/130719-school-organisation-codes-en.pdf


Appendix 1

Compliance Statement in Relation to the Current School Proposals

Introduction: School Organisation:

The School Organisation Code imposes requirements and provides 
guidelines in respect of all school organisation proposals in Wales.

For all of the current school organisation proposals the School Modernisation 
Team have planned the consultations, decision making and statutory notices 
in line with what the Code requires.

Consultation Process Timescales: 

RAG Status: GREEN

The Schools Modernisation Team are required to ensure that timescales are 
adhered to in relation to school organisation proposals.

The timescale and process for consultation, decision making and statutory 
notice for the current school proposals have been checked and verified with 
Flintshire County Council Legal Team and through external verification 
through the Welsh Government Officers. 

Welsh Government Consultation Documentation Checklist.

RAG status: GREEN
 
In the case of all school organisation proposals, the consultation document 
must contain certain information in line with School Organisation Code, July 
2013 (Document number: 006/2016).

A RAG checklist has been produced by Welsh Government School 
Governance & Organisation Branch for the current school organisation 
proposals.  The RAG checklist document follows a colour coding system in 
order to highlight any missing information or areas which Welsh Government 
felt could have been dealt with more thoroughly.

Ysgol Llanfynydd, Ysgol Maes Edwin and Ysgol Gymraeg Mornant 
proposals have all been assessed by the external Welsh Government 
Officers as having no concerns identified.

Flintshire County Council Consultee Checklist:

RAG status: GREEN

When bringing forward statutory proposals the School Organisation Code 
provides a full list of consultees that the proposer should consult with during 
the statutory process.  An internal checklist has been produced by the 
School Modernisation Team to assess if the required statutory consultees 
have been identified.  



Appendix 1

Ysgol Llanfynydd, Ysgol Maes Edwin and Ysgol Gymraeg Mornant consultee 
checklist have all been assessed by the external Welsh Government Officers 
as having no concerns identified.

Verification of Data in the Consultation Document: 

RAG status: GREEN

The School Modernisation Team uses the latest verified data at the time of 
constructing the consultation documents:

 School pupil numbers and more detailed information around pupils (for 
example Additional Learning Needs, English as an Additional Language 
and School action/school action plus/statemented) are obtained from the 
schools own statistical returns (September or January)

 Estyn data is obtained from the schools last Estyn inspection.  Timing of 
inspections will depend on Estyn's own inspection cycle. 

 National Welsh Government categorisation data, is based on the school 
returns. The Council use the most up to date data at the time of 
document construction from the Welsh Government website. Welsh 
Government update their national data base annually.

 GwE (The Regional School Improvement Service) data is fed into the 
Welsh Government's national categorisation system. 

 The Welsh Government's national Measuring Capacity of Schools in 
Wales forms are verified by Head teachers, this provides the School 
Capacity and Admission Number.

 Unfilled places are recorded by Welsh Government; the Council provide 
its returns to Welsh Government annually; they are also based on official 
school returns.

 Birth Information by area is obtained from the Office of National Statistics
 Pupil projections are aligned with the methodology as neighbouring 

Authorities with North Wales 
 Housing development information is based on actual current housing 

applications provided from the Planning Officers.
 Potential pupils which may be generated from new housing 

developments is calculated using a formula providing by a partnering 
Authority (Conwy CBC) who derive the formula based on the latest 
census returns.

 Pupil teacher ratios are provided by publically available statistics on a 
school (http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk), provided by Welsh 
Government and is updated on an annual basis.  

 Foundation Phase and Core Subject Outcomes are provided by publically 
available statistics on a school (http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk), 
provided by Welsh Government is updated on an annual basis

 School Building condition information is provided by an external company 
who compare the school building condition against the building bulletin 
for Primary and Secondary schools

http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk/
http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk/


Appendix 1

 Backlog maintenance information is provided by through independent 
consultants Property Condition Surveys are undertaken on a 5 year 
cycle.

Priority Codes [definition] are as follows:-

Priority 1: Urgent work required to be undertaken within 1 year
Priority 2: Essential work required to be undertaken within 2 years
Priority 3: Desirable work [deemed as] required to be undertaken within 3 
to 5 years
Priority 4: Long term work [deemed as] required to be undertaken outside 
the 5 year [cycle] period

The element Total 1 - 3 defines a five year financial investment and 
element 4 defines a six - ten year financial investment.

Work items are costed by the Consultant and include for preliminaries, 
labour, plant and materials etc. These costs are based on the current 
building cost information service [BCIS] provided by the Royal Institute of 
Chartered Surveyors, [RICS] as the leading provider of cost and price 
information within the construction and maintenance areas. These costs 
[Unit Rates] are present within the condition survey software to a default 
figure and amended/updated as required by the Consultant. The budget 
costings are exclusive of VAT, updated annually [using inflation indices] 
and reviewed post completion of work.

 School suitability information is provided from Suitability surveys 
undertaken independently in line with DffE Asset Management guidance 
and reviewed by FCC officers and amended if work has been completed 
at schools post initial survey.

 School Budgetary Work is conducted using agreed formula as per the 
School budget forum. Cost per pupil data is obtained from the Authority’s 
section 52 budget statements.

 Travel distances between school sites is provided by the Flintshire 
County Council mapping system Route Finder 3.41

 Transport costs are provided by the infrastructure unit who administer 
home to school transport contracts.

 
 





APPENDIX 2 
 

1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONSULTATION REPORT 

 
To the proposal to close Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain (English Medium, 

Community School) as of 31st August 2016 with pupils transferring to other 

schools in the local area subject to parental preference. 

 

 

 

DECEMBER 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 



APPENDIX 2 
 

2 
 

Index  

 

 
Number 

 

 
Section 
 

 
Page 

1 Introduction 
 

3 

2 The Proposal and consultation 
 

3 

3 Consultation Events/Meetings 
 

4 

4 Consultation Response 
 

5 

5 Response forms and correspondence 
 

7 

6 Response from Estyn 
 

9 

7 Response from Members of Parliament 
 

11 

8 Response from Governors 
 

11 

Appendix A Consultation Document recipient list 
 

 

Appendix B Summary of issues raised in meetings 
 

 

Appendix C School Council findings 
 

 

Appendix D Headteacher/Governors Minutes 
 

 

Appendix E Summary of responses to standard response form 
 

 

Appendix F Summary of issues and responses 
 

 

Appendix G Estyn’s response to the Formal Consultation 
Document 

 

Appendix H Assembly Members and Members of Parliament to 
the Formal Consultation Document 

 

Appendix I Governors response to the Formal Consultation 
Document 

 

  



APPENDIX 2 
 

3 
 

1. Introduction 

 

1.1 Following the end of a school organisation consultation period, the Welsh 

Government’s School Organisation Code requires the proposer (the 

Council) to publish a consultation report.  In this document the proposer is 

required to: 

 

 Summarise each of the issues raised by consultees. 

 Respond to these by means of clarification.  

 Set out Estyn’s view (as provided in its consultation response) of the 

overall merits of the proposal. 

 

1.2 This report should be considered by decision-makers prior to determining 

any recommendation relating to the proposal. 

 

2.0 The Proposal and Consultation 

 

2.1 On the Tuesday, 16th June 2015, Cabinet resolved to:  

  

Open a period of formal consultation with key stakeholders for Ysgol Maes  

Edwin, Flint Mountain with a future report to Cabinet. 

 

2.2 Consultation was carried out in accordance with the School Organisation 

Code. The Consultation period commenced on Wednesday 21st October 

2015 and ended on Wednesday 2nd December 2015. 

 

2.3 In accordance with the code, the consultation documents were published 

on Flintshire County Council’s website on Wednesday, 21st October 2015, 

and a link to the consultation documents was provided to stakeholders.  You 

can see the complete list of recipients in Appendix A.   

 

2.4 A special version of the consultation document, for primary school children, 

was published on the Flintshire County Council website and a hard copy 

provided to all pupils at Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain with a copy to 

the School Council at Gwynedd C.P. School, Flint; Cornist C.P. School, 

Flint and Ysgol Owen Jones, Northop.  Both versions of the consultation 

documents can be found in the school modernisation section of Flintshire 

County Council website using the following link:-  

 

 http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Schools/School-Modernisation-

Related/Ysgol-Maes-Edwin-Flint-Mountain.aspx 

 

2.5 Hard copies (5) of the consultation documents were delivered to Ysgol 

Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain; Gwynedd C.P. School, Flint; Cornist C.P. 

School, Flint; and Ysgol Owen Jones, Northop for people to view if they 

were unable to access the website. Additional hard copies were also 

http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Schools/School-Modernisation-Related/Ysgol-Maes-Edwin-Flint-Mountain.aspx
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Schools/School-Modernisation-Related/Ysgol-Maes-Edwin-Flint-Mountain.aspx


APPENDIX 2 
 

4 
 

available on request and were either posted or collected from County Hall, 

Mold. 

 

2.6 A postbox was also made available at Ysgol Maes Edwin for consultation 

responses to be posted and collected by a member of the School 

Modernisation Team. 

 

2.7 The Council produced a response document (standard response form) to 

assist and encourage people to give their views. This formed part of the 

consultation document and was also published on the Council’s website.  

The children and young people’s version of the consultation document 

contained a simpler response form.  The consultation response form was 

converted into an online survey. Links to the survey were also published on 

the website. 

 

2.8 All consultees, received an e-mail with the link directing them to the formal 

consultation document and supplementary documents on the first day of 

the consultation (21st October 2015). 

 

2.9 Documents were produced in both Welsh and English. 

 

3.0 Consultation events/meetings 

3.1 Whilst not a requirement under the Code, the Council held separate  
consultation meetings on Wednesday, 11th November 2015 at Ysgol Maes  
Edwin, Flint Mountain with: 
 

 Teachers and support staff and governing body of Ysgol Maes Edwin 
 
 Officers from Flintshire County Council attended these meetings.  Officers 

informed those in attendance at the meetings of the process to date and 
what would happen if the proposal were approved.  The attendees had the 
opportunity to ask questions and express their views and opinions. 

 
 An additional meeting was held with the Governing Body of Ysgol Maes 

Edwin on Thursday, 26th November 2015. 
 

Parents/carers/guardians of pupils at Ysgol Maes Edwin 
 
 The Parents/Carers/Guardians meeting took place at Ysgol Maes Edwin. 

Each Parent/Carer/Guardian received a letter containing the date, time, and 
location asking them to register their attendance for the event. 

 
 The consultation event allowed for parents/carers/guardians to meet with 

Council representatives and ask questions or raise issues which were 
pertinent to them as individuals and also the wider views regarding the 
school and community. 

 



APPENDIX 2 
 

5 
 

You can read a summary of the points raised at these consultation 
events/meetings, together with the responses given at the time in 
Appendix B. 

 
3.2 The Governors of Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain requested that the 

Council did not meet with the School Council of Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint 
Mountain.  The Governors felt that the pupils had already submitted their 
views on the proposed closure of the school in letter format.  The Governing 
Body confirmed via correspondence dated 11th November 2015 and 30th 
November 2015 that they were satisfied that the pupils have been able to 
submit their views with regard proposed school closure.  They were firmly 
of the view that it was not in the children’s best interests to experience the 
anxiety and upset all over again by completing the children’s and young 
person’s version of the consultation document. 

 
 
3.3 Consultation events were also arranged with the school council at Cornist 

C.P. School and Ysgol Owen Jones, Northop.  The events were facilitated 
by the Healthy Schools Lead Practitioner whose role included engaging and 
consulting with pupils.  A member of the School Modernisation Team was 
also present at the School Council meetings.  Gwynedd C.P. School, Flint 
chose to facilitate their own meeting with the school council to discuss the 
proposal. 

 
 The Governors letter from and findings of the School Council meetings are 

set out in Appendix C. 
 
3.4 The School Modernisation Team met with the Headteacher and Chair of 

Governors of the nearby affected schools.  (Gwynedd C.P. School, Flint; 
Cornist C.P. School, Flint and Ysgol Owen Jones, Northop). 

 
 A record of the Headteacher and Chair of Governors meetings are set out 

in Appendix D. 

 
4.0 Consultation responses 

4.1 In total 197 responses were received during the consultation period. These  
included a response from Estyn in the form of a report. A number of responses  
were received on electronic response forms and letters. 
 

4.2 The table below show the methods people used to respond to the consultation: 

Method of contact Number of Contacts Received 

Consultation Response Forms 53 

Children & Young People’s Response 
Forms 

5 

Letters and E-mails 56 

Letters and E-mails – Children and 
Young People 

83 

Total number of contacts 197 



APPENDIX 2 
 

6 
 

4.3 The number of contacts made pre, post consultation are listed below 

Method of Contact Pre 
Consultation 

During 
Consultation 

Post 
Consultation 

Total 
Number 

of 
Contacts 
Received 

Consultation Response 
Forms (Online) 

0 53 0 53 

Letters and E-mails 15 31 0 46 

School Governors 
Responses 

0 3 0 3 

Children and Young 
Peoples Response Forms 

0 5 0 5 

Letters and E-mails – 
Children and Young 
People 

80 0 0 80 

School Council 
Responses 

0 3 0 3 

Union Response 0 1 0 1 

Estyn Response 0 1 0 1 

AM and MP Response 4 1 0 5 

Total number of 
Contacts 

99 98 0 197 

 

 

4.4 An analysis of the frequency of issues being raised within correspondence  
received from Adults highlighted the following issues: 

 

Rank Issue Description Frequency 
of issue 
raised 

1 Impact on Pupils Concern about impact of closing 
school on the current pupils.  
Concern peer groups and siblings 
will be split up, emotional welfare 
has not been taken into 
consideration. 

30 

2 Strengths of Ysgol 
Maes Edwin 

The school has many positives, 
it’s a family school, it’s a lovely 
community school.  The school is 
in a lovely building.  The building 
is DDA compliant.  The school has 
lovely supportive teachers and 
staff.  The school has lots of 
additional activities/clubs/trips. 

57 

3 Impact on 
Community 

Closing the school down would 
significantly affect the local 
community.  The school is at the 
heart of the community and has 
been there for 103 years. 

13 

4 Consultation 
Document 

The information in the consultation 
document is incorrect.  The 

13 



APPENDIX 2 
 

7 
 

information is out of date.  The 
Estyn report for the school is old.  
The document is biased and 
negative.  The information for the 
roof repairs seems high and 
incorrect. 

5 Parental Choice Parental Choice has been taken 
away 

11 

6 Alternative 
suggestions: 
Federation for the 
school 

The school should be able to 
explore Federation. 

8 

7 Housing 
Development i.e 
Croes Atti 
Development 

Local housing developments in 
the local area have not been fully 
taken into consideration 

8 

8 Family connections 
with the school 

Request that siblings should be 
able to attend this school.  Family 
connections with the school and a 
number of families attended the 
school historically.   

5 

9 Childcare No transport for pupils to attend 
extra-curricular activities. 

5 

10 Condition of 
building 

DDA money spent on School 4 

11 Consultation 
Process 

Have correct procedures been 
followed?  

2 

12 Other schools are 
full 

Nearby schools have reached 
their Admission Number is certain 
year groups 

4 

13 Traffic and 
Transport 

Additional traffic has not been 
taken into consideration 

1 

14 Comments 
supporting the 
proposal 

Supportive of the proposal. There 
is clear rationale to support the 
proposal 

1 

 
4.5 An analysis of the frequency of issues being raised within the Children and  

Young People’s correspondence received highlighted the following issues: 
 

Rank Issue Description Frequency 
of issue 
raised 

1 Impact on Pupils Concern about impact of closing 
school on the current pupils.  
Concern peer groups and siblings 
will be split up, emotional welfare 
has not been taken into 
consideration. 

117 



APPENDIX 2 
 

8 
 

2 Strengths of Ysgol 
Maes Edwin 

The school has many positives, 
it’s a family school, it’s a lovely 
community school.  The school is 
in a lovely building.  The building 
is DDA compliant.  The school has 
lovely supportive teachers and 
staff.  The school has lots of 
additional activities/clubs/trips. 

78 

3 Impact on the 
Community 

Closing the school down would 
significantly affect the local 
community.  The school is at the 
heart of the community and has 
been there for 103 years. 

8 

4 Consultation 
Document 

The information in the consultation 
document is incorrect.  The 
information is out of date.  The 
Estyn report for the school is old.  
The document is biased and 
negative.  The information for the 
roof repairs seems high and 
incorrect. 

4 

 
 * Respondents were able to state more than one reason.  This explains why the total is 

greater than the number of respondents 
 
4.6 An analysis of the frequency of issues being raised within the Children and  

Young People’s correspondence received from School Councils highlighted  
the following issues: 

 

Rank Issue Description Frequency 
of issue 
raised 

1 Alternative 
suggestions 

Build an extension on Ysgol 
Maes Edwin so more pupils can 
attend 

6 

Fundraising event for Maes 
Edwin to extend their school 

3 

Knock the school down and build 
something else 

3 

Close the school, redesign and 
open it again 

10 

2 Impact on other 
schools  

More pupils to go to Ysgol Maes 
Edwin from schools which are full 

4 

3 Impact on Pupils Emotional welfare  13 

Losing Friends 7 

Bullying 8 

Where pupils would go to school 3 

4 More people supporting our 
school  

3 



APPENDIX 2 
 

9 
 

Comments 
supporting the 
proposal 

Make new friends 31 

5 Uniforms Would have to buy new uniforms 2 

6 Impact on 
Teachers and 
Support Staff 

Teachers would lose their jobs 4 

7 Community What would happen to the building 1 

8 Transport Buses run through the village and 
it takes a long time because of the 
roads 

1 

How would they get to their new 
school 

1 

 
4.7 The Council’s response to the concerns raised can be found in Appendix E. 
 

5.0 Response forms and correspondence 

 

5.1 The standard response form was designed to establish: 

 

 whether or not people were in favour of the Proposal; 

 the capacity in which they were responding; 

 whether or not they were linked to the school; 

 what influenced their views on the Proposal and any negative or positive  

comments they had; 

 whether or not they would send their child(ren) to the proposed alternative  

schools if the proposal was implemented; and 

 whether they wanted to make any other comments. 

 

5.2 A summary of the responses to the standard response form is set out in  

Appendix F. 

 

5.3 On the response forms, we asked people to confirm whether they were responding as 

a pupil, parent, carer, governor, teacher, support staff, local resident or other. Details of 

the respondents are set out in Appendix F. 

 
6.0 Response from Estyn 
  

The main points made by Estyn in response to the proposal and the Councils’  
response to them are set out below.  A full response from Estyn is set out in  
Appendix G. 
 

Estyn Comment Comments which require 
response 

The proposer has provided a clear rationale when 
compared with the status quo in relation to finance, 

N/A 



APPENDIX 2 
 

10 
 

surplus places and the continuity and progression in 
pupils’ learning. 

The proposal clearly defines the expected benefits of 
the proposal which link well to the stated purpose of 
rationale. The local authority has provided sufficient 
evidence to show that the plan is likely to at least 
maintain the standard of education in the Flint 
Mountain, Flint and Northop area. 

N/A 

The proposal notes appropriately the advantages of 
the proposal, which include the efficient and effective 
use of resources; a reduction of unfilled pupil places 
within the primary school network; at least maintaining 
the current standards and the quality of education in 
the area; and the reduction in travel to school for the 
majority of pupils should they choose their local 
school. 

N/A 

The proposer has identified appropriately the 
disadvantages to the current proposal, which focus on 
the impact of the closure of Ysgol Maes Edwin on the 
staff currently employed at the school, the end of 
English medium primary provision in the village of Flint 
Mountain and the increase in travel time for a few 
pupils who live in this village. 

N/A 

The local authority has provided clear evidence to 
show that it has considered other alternatives to this 
current proposal.  These include maintaining the 
status quo and federating Ysgol Maes Edwin with 
another local school.  They have demonstrated clearly 
the advantages and disadvantages of each option and 
the reasons for their preferred option. 

N/A 

The proposer has suitably considered the impact of 
the proposal on pupil travel arrangements.  It intends 
to support home to school travel in line with the 
council’s transport policy.  It further recognises that the 
proposal will potentially result in reduced travel for 
most pupils currently attending Ysgol Maes Edwin.  
However, the proposer recognises that the travel time 
would increase for a few pupils living in Flint Mountain, 
but this would not be in excess of the pupil travel 
guidelines. 

N/A 

The proposal has appropriately shown how the 
proposal will affect surplus places by providing pupil 
numbers and surplus places in 2015 for schools in the 
area. 

N/A 

The proposal appears to have taken appropriate 
account of the impact of the proposal on the Welsh 
Language and the accessibility of Welsh medium 
provision in accordance with parental choice. 

N/A 

The proposer has considered reasonably well the 
impact of the proposals on the quality of the outcomes, 
provision and leadership and management at Ysgol 
Owen Jones.  The proposer has considered the 
outcomes of the most recent Estyn inspection reports 
and each school’s categorisation in relation to the 
National School Categorisation system on the quality 
of leadership and pupil outcomes.  The proposer’s 
summary of outcomes for all four schools is clear and 
compares appropriately with local, national and family 
of schools averages.  However, the proposer has not 

Whilst not a specific requirement of 
the School Organisation Code, in 
future all consultation reports will 
include comparison of performance 
of n-FSM and e-FSM pupils. 



APPENDIX 2 
 

11 
 

commented on comparisons with similar schools 
based on entitlement to free school meals. 

The proposer has appropriately considered the likely 
impact of the proposals on standards, wellbeing and 
curriculum delivery.  The proposer reasonably asserts 
that the proposal would not impact unfavourably on 
the current standards and provision at Ysgol 
Gwynedd, Cornist C.P. School and Ysgol Owen 
Jones. 

N/A 

The proposer has undertaken an appropriate equality 
impact assessment, which considers the impact of the 
proposal on vulnerable groups including those with a 
disability or special educational needs. 

N/A 

 
7.0 Responses from Members of Parliament 

 
In total 5 responses were received pre-consultation period and during the 
consultation period Members of the Parliament. The table below show the 
methods Members of the Parliament used to respond to the consultation: 
 
Breakdown of Responses from Assembly Members & Members of Parliament  
 

No Response Type Response from 
Members of 
Parliament 

MPs 

1 Consultation Response Form 0 

2 Letters and Emails 5 

Totals 5 

 

The correspondence from the Members of Parliament and the authority responses  
can be viewed in Appendix H. 

 

8.0 Responses from Governors 

In total 3 responses were received during the consultation period from governors. 
The table below show the methods governors used to respond to the consultation: 
 
Breakdown of Responses from Governors  
 

No Response Type Amount of 
Governors 
received 

1 Consultation Response Form 0 

2 Letters and Emails 3 

Totals 0 

 



APPENDIX 2 
 

12 
 

The correspondence from governors can be viewed in Appendix I. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Consultation Document (Adult and Childrens); Transport Assessment, 

Equality and Welsh Language Impact Assessment, Community Impact 

Assessment Recipient List 

No Stakeholder Number of 
Recipient 

List 

1 Maintaining or proposed maintaining authority for any school likely 
to be affected by the proposal 

20 

2 Any other local authority likely to be affected 
Denbighshire County Council – School Modernisation 
Conwy County Council – School Modernisation 
Wrexham County Borough Council – School Modernisation 

3 

3 The Church in Wales 1 

Roman Catholic Diocesan Authority 1 

4 School Governing body for Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain 11 

School Governing body for Ysgol Gwynedd, Flint 11 

School Governing body for Ysgol Owen Jones, Northop 11 

School Governing body for Cornist CP School, Flint  11 

5 Parents/Carers/Guardians/Prospective Parents/Teachers/Support 
Staff/Pupils/School Council of Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain 

150 

Parents/Carers/Guardians/Prospective Parents/Teachers/Support 
Staff/School Council of Ysgol Gwynedd, Flint 

546 

Parents/Carers/Guardians/Prospective Parents/Teachers/Support 
Staff/School Council of Ysgol Owen Jones, Northop 

157 

Parents/Carers/Guardians/Prospective Parents/Teachers/Support 
Staff/School Council of Cornist CP School, Flint 

383 

6 The Welsh Ministers, AMs and MPs 7 

7 Estyn 1 

8 Teaching and Staff trade unions 17 

9 North Wales Regional School Effectiveness and Improvement Service  
– Consortium - GWE 

1 

10 Regional Transport Consortium 4 

11 Police and crime commissioner 1 

12 Any community or town council for the area served by/intended to 
be served by any school which is subject to the proposal 

3 

13 The local communities first partnership 1 

14 In the case of proposals affecting nursery provision, any 
independent provider 

1 

15 In the case of proposal affecting nursery provision, the Children and 
Young People Partnership 

1 

16 URDD 1 

17 Welsh Government Schools Management 4 

18 Local Members 8 

19 Equality and Welsh Language 2 

20 Local High School – Headteacher and Chair of Governor 2 

21 Local Health Authority 1 

 TOTAL 1360 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX C 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



































































































































































































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX D 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



















 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX E 

  



APPENDIX E 

Summary of Issues and Responses 

Housing Development 
Consultee Comment Local Authority Response 

 
 Potential new housing in area 
 Application to change use of land in the 

area from agricultural to building 
 Croes Atti Development 
 Expanding residential area 
 New housing has created younger 

families 
 Expected rise in number of school pupil 

due to housing development 
 Authority have approved new housing 

developments in the area 
 
 
 
 

 
The Council has fully considered school 
capacity in the area together with potential 
housing development yield within its 
consultation documents. 
  
Data regarding potential pupils which could 
be generated from new housing 
developments is calculated using a housing 
yield formula.  The housing yield formula 
has been derived from research work based 
on national census data from a partnering 
authority.  This was applied to all current 
housing development planning applications 
approved by the planning authority. 
 
The housing yield figures produced are a 
maximum figure and do not take into 
account parental choice and/or pupil 
movement i.e. pupils moving into the new 
homes but who are already in the local 
education system. 
 
The pace of housing developments will be 
constrained by the plans of the site 
owners/developers, the housing market, 
current economic climate and other factors 
which are unpredictable. 
 
It is the Council’s view that there is sufficient 
capacity within the local school network to 
accommodate pupils from Ysgol Maes Edwin 
should it close.  Estyn have commented that;
 
‘The local authority has given a clear 
rationale for the proposed expected benefits 
when compared with the status quo in 
relation to finance, surplus places and the 
continuity and progression in pupils’ 
learning.’ 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Impact on Community 
Consultee Comment Local Authority Response 

 
 School land should only be used for a 

school 
 School/Community must do more to 

attract more pupils 
 Community spirit 
 Central hub of village 
 No amenities left in village 
 School used for clubs/night classes 
 Essential to the community 

 

 
A Community Impact Assessment has been 
carried out and the Council acknowledges 
that where a school closure is proposed it 
will have some impact on the local 
community, although the community use of 
the school is relatively low. 
 
However, the Council will work with schools 
and community to mitigate issues where 
possible. 
 
The Council have no plans for the site, and 
will not consider the future of the site until 
such time as the school’s future is 
determined. 
 
Legal Land ownership issues are still being 
investigated, it has been noted that some of 
the site at Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain 
is part of the Bryn Edwin Trust.  Dependant 
on the formalisation of such matters, the 
Council could consider transferring the 
asset or part of the asset to a constituted 
community group where it can demonstrate 
a need and ability to take over the running of 
the site.   
 

 
Strengths of Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain 

Consultee Comment Local Authority Response 
 

 Small class sizes 
 Pupils mix well together 
 Pupil Teacher Ratio 
 Family atmosphere 
 Growth in pupil numbers 
 Successful Clubs/Trips 
 Good Estyn Report 
 Pastoral Care 
 Unique Values 
 Education Standards 
 Happy children 
 Lots of pupils with Additional Learning 

Needs 
 Good Staff and Teachers 
 Amazing school 

 

 
The positive responses from consultees 
regarding Ysgol Maes Edwin are noted. 
 
Reviewing the future of any school is 
controversial and emotive. Pupils, parents, 
carers and teachers, past and present, have 
strong ties to local schools as part of their 
own life-stories. The Council is challenged 
with balancing the sensitivities of 
community feeling on the one hand, with 
providing a high quality education offer 
which can be sustained and afforded. The 
Council cannot avoid making decisions for 
the future which are in the best interests of 
pupils and students. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Impact on pupils 
Consultee Comment Local Authority Response 

 
 Pupils already transferred from other 

schools 
 Bullying 
 Unable to get into other nearby schools 

because they are full 
 Increased travel times to school 
 Don’t want to attend larger schools 
 Loss of Friendship 
 Want to be with their siblings 
 Want get the further support they 

require 
 Overcrowded classrooms 
 Won’t get the same standard of 

education 
 Disruption to their education 

 
 
 

 
When proposing changes to school 
organisation it is acknowledged that there 
will be some changes for pupils.  Should the 
proposal be implemented and Ysgol Maes 
Edwin, Flint Mountain be closed it would 
result in changes for the existing pupils 
such as : 

 Shorter journey time to school for 
pupils who reside in the Flint area 

 A marginally longer route to school 
for less than 10 pupils who live in the 
Flint Mountain area 

 A new school uniform 
 New teachers and support staff 
 New learning environment 
 Friendship groups may be affected, 

however new friendships may be 
formed. 

 
The Council will take all practicable steps to 
ease the transition for all pupils, most 
especially for vulnerable groups of learners 
such as Additional Learning Needs (ALN).  
Should the proposal be implemented the 
Council would work alongside pupils, their 
parents, and the relevant schools to make 
appropriate transition arrangements for 
pupils to familiarise themselves with their 
new environments (subject to parental 
preference). 
 
Where pupils have specific ALN needs the 
resource and support they require would be 
replicated in their new learning 
environments. 
 
Under current transport policy fewer than 
ten pupils would be entitled to free home to 
school transport based on the assumption 
they transfer to their nearest school Ysgol 
Owen Jones, Northop. This would be on the 
basis that the route to the alternative school 
from Flint Mountain would be considered to 
be hazardous due to its rural location which 
has limited footpaths in and out of the 
village. 
 
A mini admissions process will be 
administered to assist families in transition 
to other school should cabinet determine 
closure. 
 

 

 



Condition of Building 
Consultee Comment Local Authority Response 

 
 Recent spend on DDA (Disability 

Discrimination Act) works and 
maintenance  

 New classroom and library built in 2000 
 
 
 
 

 
The Council cannot predetermine an 
outcome to the proposal and therefore work 
on the principal of spending today’s money 
is spent on today’s pupils. 
 
The condition surveys are carried out by 
independent surveyors, commissioned by 
the Council. They survey schools on a five 
year cycle in line with national guidance and 
provide the Council with maintenance 
priorities. The work to repair the roof was 
identified as a priority, therefore urgent 
repair work was programmed accordingly. 
 
The Local Authority has a legal duty to 
consider the Equalities Act, therefore work 
was completed at the school to facilitate the 
needs of a pupil.

 

Consultation Document 
Consultee Comment Local Authority Response 

 
 Out of date figures used in document 
 Document is biased 
 Doesn’t consider Housing Development 
 Data is incorrect 

 
 

 
The School Modernisation Team uses the 
latest verified data at the time of 
constructing the consultation documents: 
 
School pupil numbers and more detailed 
information around pupils (for example 
Additional Learning Needs, English as an 
Additional Language and School 
action/school action plus/statemented) are 
obtained from the schools own statistical 
returns (September or January) 
Estyn data is obtained from the schools last 
Estyn inspection.  Timing of inspections will 
depend on Estyn's own inspection cycle.  
National Welsh Government categorisation 
data, is based on the school returns. The 
Council use the most up to date data at the 
time of document construction from the 
Welsh Government website. Welsh 
Government update their national data base 
annually. 
GwE (The Regional School Improvement 
Service) data is fed into the Welsh 
Government's national categorisation 
system.  
The Welsh Government's national 
Measuring Capacity of Schools in Wales 
forms are verified by Head teachers, this 
provides the School Capacity and Admission 
Number. 
Unfilled places are recorded by Welsh 
Government; the Council provide its returns 



to Welsh Government annually; they are also 
based on official school returns. 
Birth Information by area is obtained from 
the Office of National Statistics 
Pupil projections are aligned with the 
methodology as neighbouring Authorities 
with North Wales  
Housing development information is based 
on actual current housing applications 
provided from the Planning Officers. 
Potential pupils which may be generated 
from new housing developments is 
calculated using a formula providing by a 
partnering Authority (Conwy CBC) who 
derive the formula based on the latest 
census returns. 
Pupil teacher ratios are provided by 
publically available statistics on a school 
(http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk), 
provided by Welsh Government and is 
updated on an annual basis.   
Foundation Phase and Core Subject 
Outcomes are provided by publically 
available statistics on a school 
(http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk), 
provided by Welsh Government is updated 
on an annual basis 
School Building condition information is 
provided by an external company who 
compare the school building condition 
against the building bulletin for Primary and 
Secondary schools 
Backlog maintenance information is 
provided by through independent 
consultants Property Condition Surveys are 
undertaken on a 5 year cycle. 
 
Priority Codes [definition] are as follows:- 
 
Priority 1: Urgent work required to be 
undertaken within 1 year 
Priority 2: Essential work required to be 
undertaken within 2 years 
Priority 3: Desirable work [deemed as] 
required to be undertaken within 3 to 5 years 
Priority 4: Long term work [deemed as] 
required to be undertaken outside the 5 year 
[cycle] period 
 
The element Total 1 - 3 defines a five year 
financial investment and element 4 defines a 
six - ten year financial investment. 
 
Work items are costed by the Consultant and 
include for preliminaries, labour, plant and 
materials etc. These costs are based on the 
current building cost information service 
[BCIS] provided by the Royal Institute of 
Chartered Surveyors, [RICS] as the leading 



provider of cost and price information within 
the construction and maintenance areas. 
These costs [Unit Rates] are present within 
the condition survey software to a default 
figure and amended/updated as required by 
the Consultant. The budget costings are 
exclusive of VAT, updated annually [using 
inflation indices] and reviewed post 
completion of work. 
 
School suitability information is provided 
from Suitability surveys undertaken 
independently in line with DffE Asset 
Management guidance and reviewed by FCC 
officers and amended if work has been 
completed at schools post initial survey. 
School Budgetary Work is conducted using 
agreed formula as per the School budget 
forum. Cost per pupil data is obtained from 
the Authority’s section 52 budget 
statements. 
Travel distances between school sites is 
provided by the Flintshire County Council 
mapping system Route Finder 3.41 
Transport costs are provided by the 
infrastructure unit who administer home to 
school transport contracts. 
  
 

 
Consultation Process 

Consultee Comment Local Authority Response 
 

 Process caused stress and upset 
 Unfairly targeted 

 

 

 
The process follows regulatory guidance as 
set out in the Welsh Government’s School 
Organisation Code 2013. 
 
However, it is acknowledged that the 
process around school organisational 
change can be unsettling for pupils, staff 
and the school community. 
 
The proposal was put forward on the basis 
of criteria laid down in the Council’s School 
Modernisation Strategy, namely: 
 
 Unfilled places across the primary 

school portfolio – Ysgol Maes Edwin, 
Flint Mountain as at January 2015 
(PLASC) had 66 full time pupils with 
unfilled places of 13.16%.  As of 
September 2015 the school population 
has 55 full time pupils with unfilled 
places at 27.63%; 

 Diminishing resource criteria (i.e. 
schools supported by pupils not from 
their local community and/or small 
numbers within the community raise 
concern regarding sustainability within 



the school’s portfolio) - 83.63% of pupils 
attending Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint 
Mountain are not attending their local 
school; 

 Small School Criteria – The School 
population and capacity of Ysgol Maes 
Edwin, Flint Mountain is lower than 
national designation of a small school, 
additionally school numbers do not meet 
the minimum requirements of primary 
school models as noted in the Council’s 
School Modernisation Strategy, and 

 Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain is 
currently (July 2015) in Welsh 
Government categorisation 4, on a scale 
of 1 - 4, with 4 being the lowest for 
educational standards.   

 
 

Alternative Proposals 
Consultee Comment Local Authority Response 

 
 The site is perfect for a primary 

education PRU (Pupil Referral Unit) 
which is needed within Flintshire.  

 
Suggestion noted 
 
However, the Council has no plans for 
the site, and will not consider the future 
of the site until such time as to the 
school’s future is determined. 
 

 

 

 



APPENDIX E 

Summary of Issues and Responses 

Housing Development 
Consultee Comment Local Authority Response 

 

 Potential new housing in area 

 Application to change use of land in the 
area from agricultural to building 

 Croes Atti Development 

 Expanding residential area 

 New housing has created younger 
families 

 Expected rise in number of school pupil 
due to housing development 

 Authority have approved new housing 
developments in the area 

 
 
 
 

 
The Council has fully considered school 
capacity in the area together with potential 
housing development yield within its 
consultation documents. 
  
Data regarding potential pupils which could 
be generated from new housing 
developments is calculated using a housing 
yield formula.  The housing yield formula 
has been derived from research work based 
on national census data from a partnering 
authority.  This was applied to all current 
housing development planning applications 
approved by the planning authority. 
 
The housing yield figures produced are a 
maximum figure and do not take into 
account parental choice and/or pupil 
movement i.e. pupils moving into the new 
homes but who are already in the local 
education system. 
 
The pace of housing developments will be 
constrained by the plans of the site 
owners/developers, the housing market, 
current economic climate and other factors 
which are unpredictable. 
 
It is the Council’s view that there is sufficient 
capacity within the local school network to 
accommodate pupils from Ysgol Maes Edwin 
should it close.  Estyn have commented that; 
 
‘The local authority has given a clear 
rationale for the proposed expected benefits 
when compared with the status quo in 
relation to finance, surplus places and the 
continuity and progression in pupils’ 
learning.’ 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Impact on Community 
Consultee Comment Local Authority Response 

 

 School land should only be used for a 
school 

 School/Community must do more to 
attract more pupils 

 Community spirit 

 Central hub of village 

 No amenities left in village 

 School used for clubs/night classes 

 Essential to the community 
 

 
A Community Impact Assessment has been 
carried out and the Council acknowledges 
that where a school closure is proposed it 
will have some impact on the local 
community, although the community use of 
the school is relatively low. 
 
However, the Council will work with schools 
and community to mitigate issues where 
possible. 
 
The Council have no plans for the site, and 
will not consider the future of the site until 
such time as the school’s future is 
determined. 
 
Legal Land ownership issues are still being 
investigated, it has been noted that some of 
the site at Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain 
is part of the Bryn Edwin Trust.  Dependant 
on the formalisation of such matters, the 
Council could consider transferring the 
asset or part of the asset to a constituted 
community group where it can demonstrate 
a need and ability to take over the running of 
the site.   
 

 
Strengths of Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain 

Consultee Comment Local Authority Response 

 

 Small class sizes 

 Pupils mix well together 

 Pupil Teacher Ratio 

 Family atmosphere 

 Growth in pupil numbers 

 Successful Clubs/Trips 

 Good Estyn Report 

 Pastoral Care 

 Unique Values 

 Education Standards 

 Happy children 

 Lots of pupils with Additional Learning 
Needs 

 Good Staff and Teachers 

 Amazing school 
 

 
The positive responses from consultees 
regarding Ysgol Maes Edwin are noted. 
 
Reviewing the future of any school is 
controversial and emotive. Pupils, parents, 
carers and teachers, past and present, have 
strong ties to local schools as part of their 
own life-stories. The Council is challenged 
with balancing the sensitivities of 
community feeling on the one hand, with 
providing a high quality education offer 
which can be sustained and afforded. The 
Council cannot avoid making decisions for 
the future which are in the best interests of 
pupils and students. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Impact on pupils 

Consultee Comment Local Authority Response 
 

 Pupils already transferred from other 
schools 

 Bullying 

 Unable to get into other nearby schools 
because they are full 

 Increased travel times to school 

 Don’t want to attend larger schools 

 Loss of Friendship 

 Want to be with their siblings 

 Want get the further support they 
require 

 Overcrowded classrooms 

 Won’t get the same standard of 
education 

 Disruption to their education 
 
 
 

 
When proposing changes to school 
organisation it is acknowledged that there 
will be some changes for pupils.  Should the 
proposal be implemented and Ysgol Maes 
Edwin, Flint Mountain be closed it would 
result in changes for the existing pupils 
such as : 

 Shorter journey time to school for 
pupils who reside in the Flint area 

 A marginally longer route to school 
for less than 10 pupils who live in the 
Flint Mountain area 

 A new school uniform 

 New teachers and support staff 

 New learning environment 

 Friendship groups may be affected, 
however new friendships may be 
formed. 

 
The Council will take all practicable steps to 
ease the transition for all pupils, most 
especially for vulnerable groups of learners 
such as Additional Learning Needs (ALN).  
Should the proposal be implemented the 
Council would work alongside pupils, their 
parents, and the relevant schools to make 
appropriate transition arrangements for 
pupils to familiarise themselves with their 
new environments (subject to parental 
preference). 
 
Where pupils have specific ALN needs the 
resource and support they require would be 
replicated in their new learning 
environments. 

 
Under current transport policy fewer than 
ten pupils would be entitled to free home to 
school transport based on the assumption 
they transfer to their nearest school Ysgol 
Owen Jones, Northop. This would be on the 
basis that the route to the alternative school 
from Flint Mountain would be considered to 
be hazardous due to its rural location which 
has limited footpaths in and out of the 
village. 
 
A mini admissions process will be 
administered to assist families in transition 
to other school should cabinet determine 
closure. 
 

 

 



Condition of Building 

Consultee Comment Local Authority Response 
 

 Recent spend on DDA (Disability 
Discrimination Act) works and 
maintenance  

 New classroom and library built in 2000 
 
 
 
 

 
The Council cannot predetermine an 
outcome to the proposal and therefore work 
on the principal of spending today’s money 
is spent on today’s pupils. 
 
The condition surveys are carried out by 
independent surveyors, commissioned by 
the Council. They survey schools on a five 
year cycle in line with national guidance and 
provide the Council with maintenance 
priorities. The work to repair the roof was 
identified as a priority, therefore urgent 
repair work was programmed accordingly. 
 
The Local Authority has a legal duty to 
consider the Equalities Act, therefore work 
was completed at the school to facilitate the 
needs of a pupil. 

 

Consultation Document 

Consultee Comment Local Authority Response 
 

 Out of date figures used in document 

 Document is biased 

 Doesn’t consider Housing Development 

 Data is incorrect 
 
 

 
The School Modernisation Team uses the 
latest verified data at the time of 
constructing the consultation documents: 
 

School pupil numbers and more detailed 
information around pupils (for example 
Additional Learning Needs, English as an 
Additional Language and School 
action/school action plus/statemented) are 
obtained from the schools own statistical 
returns (September or January) 

Estyn data is obtained from the schools last 
Estyn inspection.  Timing of inspections will 
depend on Estyn's own inspection cycle.  

National Welsh Government categorisation 
data, is based on the school returns. The 
Council use the most up to date data at the 
time of document construction from the 
Welsh Government website. Welsh 
Government update their national data base 
annually. 

GwE (The Regional School Improvement 
Service) data is fed into the Welsh 
Government's national categorisation 
system.  

The Welsh Government's national 
Measuring Capacity of Schools in Wales 
forms are verified by Head teachers, this 
provides the School Capacity and Admission 
Number. 

Unfilled places are recorded by Welsh 
Government; the Council provide its returns 



to Welsh Government annually; they are also 
based on official school returns. 

Birth Information by area is obtained from 
the Office of National Statistics 

Pupil projections are aligned with the 
methodology as neighbouring Authorities 
with North Wales  

Housing development information is based 
on actual current housing applications 
provided from the Planning Officers. 

Potential pupils which may be generated 
from new housing developments is 
calculated using a formula providing by a 
partnering Authority (Conwy CBC) who 
derive the formula based on the latest 
census returns. 

Pupil teacher ratios are provided by 
publically available statistics on a school 
(http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk), 
provided by Welsh Government and is 
updated on an annual basis.   

Foundation Phase and Core Subject 
Outcomes are provided by publically 
available statistics on a school 
(http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk), 
provided by Welsh Government is updated 
on an annual basis 

School Building condition information is 
provided by an external company who 
compare the school building condition 
against the building bulletin for Primary and 
Secondary schools 

Backlog maintenance information is 
provided by through independent 
consultants Property Condition Surveys are 
undertaken on a 5 year cycle. 
 
Priority Codes [definition] are as follows:- 
 
Priority 1: Urgent work required to be 
undertaken within 1 year 
Priority 2: Essential work required to be 
undertaken within 2 years 
Priority 3: Desirable work [deemed as] 
required to be undertaken within 3 to 5 years 
Priority 4: Long term work [deemed as] 
required to be undertaken outside the 5 year 
[cycle] period 
 
The element Total 1 - 3 defines a five year 
financial investment and element 4 defines a 
six - ten year financial investment. 
 
Work items are costed by the Consultant and 
include for preliminaries, labour, plant and 
materials etc. These costs are based on the 
current building cost information service 
[BCIS] provided by the Royal Institute of 
Chartered Surveyors, [RICS] as the leading 

http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk/
http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk/


provider of cost and price information within 
the construction and maintenance areas. 
These costs [Unit Rates] are present within 
the condition survey software to a default 
figure and amended/updated as required by 
the Consultant. The budget costings are 
exclusive of VAT, updated annually [using 
inflation indices] and reviewed post 
completion of work. 
 

School suitability information is provided 
from Suitability surveys undertaken 
independently in line with DffE Asset 
Management guidance and reviewed by FCC 
officers and amended if work has been 
completed at schools post initial survey. 

School Budgetary Work is conducted using 
agreed formula as per the School budget 
forum. Cost per pupil data is obtained from 
the Authority’s section 52 budget 
statements. 

Travel distances between school sites is 
provided by the Flintshire County Council 
mapping system Route Finder 3.41 

Transport costs are provided by the 
infrastructure unit who administer home to 
school transport contracts. 

  
 

 
Consultation Process 

Consultee Comment Local Authority Response 
 

 Process caused stress and upset 

 Unfairly targeted 

 

 

 
The process follows regulatory guidance as 
set out in the Welsh Government’s School 
Organisation Code 2013. 
 
However, it is acknowledged that the 
process around school organisational 
change can be unsettling for pupils, staff 
and the school community. 
 
The proposal was put forward on the basis 
of criteria laid down in the Council’s School 
Modernisation Strategy, namely: 
 

 Unfilled places across the primary 
school portfolio – Ysgol Maes Edwin, 
Flint Mountain as at January 2015 
(PLASC) had 66 full time pupils with 
unfilled places of 13.16%.  As of 
September 2015 the school population 
has 55 full time pupils with unfilled 
places at 27.63%; 

 Diminishing resource criteria (i.e. 
schools supported by pupils not from 
their local community and/or small 
numbers within the community raise 
concern regarding sustainability within 



the school’s portfolio) - 83.63% of pupils 
attending Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint 
Mountain are not attending their local 
school; 

 Small School Criteria – The School 
population and capacity of Ysgol Maes 
Edwin, Flint Mountain is lower than 
national designation of a small school, 
additionally school numbers do not meet 
the minimum requirements of primary 
school models as noted in the Council’s 
School Modernisation Strategy, and 

 Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain is 
currently (July 2015) in Welsh 
Government categorisation 4, on a scale 
of 1 - 4, with 4 being the lowest for 
educational standards.   

 

 

Alternative Proposals 

Consultee Comment Local Authority Response 
 

 The site is perfect for a primary 
education PRU (Pupil Referral Unit) 
which is needed within Flintshire.  

 
Suggestion noted 
 
However, the Council has no plans for 
the site, and will not consider the future 
of the site until such time as to the 
school’s future is determined. 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX F 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Summary of responses to Standard Response Forms 

 

Question 1 Do you are agree with the proposal to close Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint 

Mountain by 31st August 2016? 

 Total Percentage 

Yes 1 1.9% 

No 52 98.1% 

 53  

 

Question 2 Please tell us if you are responding as: 

Type Total Percentage 

Pupil 3 5.7% 

Parent/Carer 19 35.8% 

Governor 3 5.7% 

Teacher 2 3.8% 

Support Staff 2 3.8% 

Local Resident 25 47.2% 

Other 7 13.2% 

Skipped Question 0 0% 

 61*  

 

* Respondents were able to respond in more than one capacity.  This explains 

why the total is greater than the number of respondents. 

Comment: The majority of respondents who are directly involved with the school 

(e.g. staff, governors, pupils, parents, carers, guardians) were against the proposal. 

Question 3 Please tell us do you have any alternative suggestions for sustainable 

education provision in Flint Mountain? 

Alternative Suggestion Total Percentage 

Federation 11 30.5% 

Use the school as a community hub 5 13.8%  

There is no need to change 5 13.8% 

Close schools that better fit the criteria 3 8.3% 

None 2 6% 

Pupil numbers are growing leave the 
school alone 

2 6% 

Make Chief Executive and Flintshire 
County Council Officers redundant and 
redirect the money to Ysgol Maes Edwin 

1 2.7% 

Sustainable education provision in Flint 
Mountain can only be achieved by keeping 
Ysgol Maes Edwin open. 

1 2.7% 

Mothball school and re-open as pupil 
numbers increase 

1 2.7% 



No surplus places need addressing for the 
benefit of all pupils across Flintshire 

1 2.7% 

Don’t use incorrect data 1 2.7% 

Nowhere within walking distance 1 2.7% 

Selected unjustly 1 2.7% 

Fill it to capacity 1 2.7% 

TOTAL 36 100% 

 
Comment: Of the 53 responded, 36 answered the question and 17 skipped the 

question. The majority of people who responded said that they would like to see 

Federation with another school as an alternative. 

Question 4 Additional comments or views regarding the proposal. 

Please note that the responses to this question have been considered as part of the 

main consultation responses in Appendix E. 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX G 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
Estyn response to the proposal to close Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain, 

with pupils transferring to other schools in the local area subject to parental 

preference. 

This report has been prepared by Her Majesty’s Inspectors of Education and 

Training in Wales. 

Under the terms of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 and its 

associated Code, proposers are required to send consultation documents to Estyn.  

However Estyn is not a body which is required to act in accordance with the Code 

and the Act places no statutory requirements on Estyn in respect of school 

organisation matters.  Therefore as a body being consulted, Estyn will provide their 

opinion only on the overall merits of school organisation proposals. 

Estyn has considered the educational aspects of the proposal and has produced the 

following response to the information provided by the proposer and other additional 

information such as data from Welsh Government and the views of the Regional 

Consortia which deliver school improvement services to the schools within the 

proposal. 

Introduction 

The proposal is by Flintshire County Council.   

The proposal is to close Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain from 31st of August 2016 

with existing pupils transferring to other schools in the local area, subject to parental 

preference. 

Summary 

The proposal is part of Flintshire County Council’s School Modernisation Strategy, 

which aims to ensure that there are a sufficient number of school places, of the right 

type, in the right locations.    

It is Estyn’s opinion that the proposal is likely to at least maintain the current 

standards of education in the area. 

Description and benefits 

The local authority has given a clear rationale for the proposed expected benefits 

when compared with the status quo in relation to finance, surplus places and the 

continuity and progression in pupils’ learning.  

The proposal clearly defines the expected benefits of the proposal which link well to 

the stated purpose and rationale. The local authority has provided sufficient evidence 

to show that the plan is likely to at least maintain the standard of education in the 

Flint Mountain, Flint and Northop area. 



The proposal notes appropriately the advantages of the proposal, which include the 

efficient and effective use of resources; a reduction of unfilled pupil places within the 

primary school network; at least maintaining the current standards and the quality of 

education in the area; and the reduction in travel to school for the majority of pupils 

should they choose their local school. 

The proposer has identified appropriately the disadvantages to the current proposal, 

which focus on the impact of the closure of Ysgol Maes Edwin on the staff currently 

employed at the school, the end of English medium primary provision in the village of 

Flint Mountain and the increase in travel time for a few pupils who live in this village. 

The local authority has provided clear evidence to show that it has considered other 

alternatives to this current proposal. These include maintaining the status quo and 

federating Ysgol Maes Edwin with another local school. They have demonstrated 

clearly the advantages and disadvantages of each option and the reasons for their 

preferred option. 

The proposer has suitably considered the impact of the proposal on pupil travel 

arrangements.  It intends to support home to school travel in line with the council’s 

transport policy.  It further recognises that the proposal will potentially result in 

reduced travel for most pupils currently attending Ysgol Maes Edwin.  However, the 

proposer recognises that the travel time would increase for a few pupils living in Flint 

Mountain, but this would not be in excess of the pupil travel guidelines. 

The proposer has appropriately shown how the proposal will affect surplus places by 

providing pupil numbers and surplus places in 2015 for schools in the area.  

The proposal appears to have taken appropriate account of the impact of the 

proposal on the Welsh language and the accessibility of Welsh medium provision in 

accordance with parental choice. 

The proposer has considered reasonably well the impact of the proposals on the 

quality of the outcomes, provision and leadership and management at Ysgol Maes 

Edwin, Ysgol Gwynedd, Cornist Community Primary School and Ysgol Owen Jones.  

The proposer has considered the outcomes of the most recent Estyn inspection 

reports and each school’s categorisation in relation to the National School 

Categorisation system on the quality of leadership and pupil outcomes.   The 

proposer’s summary of outcomes for all four schools is clear and compares 

appropriately with local, national and family of schools averages.  However, the 

proposer has not commented on comparisons with similar schools based on 

entitlement to free school meals. 

With the exception of Ysgol Owen Jones, Estyn inspected the other three schools 

between January 2014 and February 2015.  The judgements for the current 

performance and prospects for improvement were judged as good for these three 

schools.  Estyn inspected Ysgol Owen Jones in May 2010 and judged six out of the 



seven key questions as grade 2, with one being judged as grade 1. The local 

authority has also evaluated each school’s performance in relation to the National 

School Categorisation System.  Under the system, schools will be in one of four 

standards groups (1 to 4), with schools in standards group 1 demonstrating very 

good overall performance and those in standards group 4 demonstrating the greatest 

need for improved performance.  Ysgol Maes Edwin is currently in standards group 

4, Ysgol Gwynedd in standards group 2 and both Cornist Community Primary School 

and Ysgol Owen Jones in standards group 1. 

The proposer has appropriately considered the likely impact of the proposals on 

standards, wellbeing and curriculum delivery.  The proposer reasonably asserts that 

the proposal would not impact unfavourably on the current standards and provision 

at Ysgol Gwynedd, Cornist Community Primary School and Ysgol Owen Jones.    

The proposer has undertaken an appropriate equality impact assessment, which 
considers the impact of the proposal on vulnerable groups including those with a 
disability or special educational needs.   
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX H 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 































































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX I 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





































 
Estyn response to the proposal to close Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain, 

with pupils transferring to other schools in the local area subject to parental 

preference. 

This report has been prepared by Her Majesty’s Inspectors of Education and 

Training in Wales. 

Under the terms of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 and its 

associated Code, proposers are required to send consultation documents to Estyn.  

However Estyn is not a body which is required to act in accordance with the Code 

and the Act places no statutory requirements on Estyn in respect of school 

organisation matters.  Therefore as a body being consulted, Estyn will provide their 

opinion only on the overall merits of school organisation proposals. 

Estyn has considered the educational aspects of the proposal and has produced the 

following response to the information provided by the proposer and other additional 

information such as data from Welsh Government and the views of the Regional 

Consortia which deliver school improvement services to the schools within the 

proposal. 

Introduction 

The proposal is by Flintshire County Council.   

The proposal is to close Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain from 31st of August 2016 

with existing pupils transferring to other schools in the local area, subject to parental 

preference. 

Summary 

The proposal is part of Flintshire County Council’s School Modernisation Strategy, 

which aims to ensure that there are a sufficient number of school places, of the right 

type, in the right locations.    

It is Estyn’s opinion that the proposal is likely to at least maintain the current 

standards of education in the area. 

Description and benefits 

The local authority has given a clear rationale for the proposed expected benefits 

when compared with the status quo in relation to finance, surplus places and the 

continuity and progression in pupils’ learning.  

The proposal clearly defines the expected benefits of the proposal which link well to 

the stated purpose and rationale. The local authority has provided sufficient evidence 

to show that the plan is likely to at least maintain the standard of education in the 

Flint Mountain, Flint and Northop area. 



The proposal notes appropriately the advantages of the proposal, which include the 

efficient and effective use of resources; a reduction of unfilled pupil places within the 

primary school network; at least maintaining the current standards and the quality of 

education in the area; and the reduction in travel to school for the majority of pupils 

should they choose their local school. 

The proposer has identified appropriately the disadvantages to the current proposal, 

which focus on the impact of the closure of Ysgol Maes Edwin on the staff currently 

employed at the school, the end of English medium primary provision in the village of 

Flint Mountain and the increase in travel time for a few pupils who live in this village. 

The local authority has provided clear evidence to show that it has considered other 

alternatives to this current proposal. These include maintaining the status quo and 

federating Ysgol Maes Edwin with another local school. They have demonstrated 

clearly the advantages and disadvantages of each option and the reasons for their 

preferred option. 

The proposer has suitably considered the impact of the proposal on pupil travel 

arrangements.  It intends to support home to school travel in line with the council’s 

transport policy.  It further recognises that the proposal will potentially result in 

reduced travel for most pupils currently attending Ysgol Maes Edwin.  However, the 

proposer recognises that the travel time would increase for a few pupils living in Flint 

Mountain, but this would not be in excess of the pupil travel guidelines. 

The proposer has appropriately shown how the proposal will affect surplus places by 

providing pupil numbers and surplus places in 2015 for schools in the area.  

The proposal appears to have taken appropriate account of the impact of the 

proposal on the Welsh language and the accessibility of Welsh medium provision in 

accordance with parental choice. 

The proposer has considered reasonably well the impact of the proposals on the 

quality of the outcomes, provision and leadership and management at Ysgol Maes 

Edwin, Ysgol Gwynedd, Cornist Community Primary School and Ysgol Owen Jones.  

The proposer has considered the outcomes of the most recent Estyn inspection 

reports and each school’s categorisation in relation to the National School 

Categorisation system on the quality of leadership and pupil outcomes.   The 

proposer’s summary of outcomes for all four schools is clear and compares 

appropriately with local, national and family of schools averages.  However, the 

proposer has not commented on comparisons with similar schools based on 

entitlement to free school meals. 

With the exception of Ysgol Owen Jones, Estyn inspected the other three schools 

between January 2014 and February 2015.  The judgements for the current 

performance and prospects for improvement were judged as good for these three 

schools.  Estyn inspected Ysgol Owen Jones in May 2010 and judged six out of the 



seven key questions as grade 2, with one being judged as grade 1. The local 

authority has also evaluated each school’s performance in relation to the National 

School Categorisation System.  Under the system, schools will be in one of four 

standards groups (1 to 4), with schools in standards group 1 demonstrating very 

good overall performance and those in standards group 4 demonstrating the greatest 

need for improved performance.  Ysgol Maes Edwin is currently in standards group 

4, Ysgol Gwynedd in standards group 2 and both Cornist Community Primary School 

and Ysgol Owen Jones in standards group 1. 

The proposer has appropriately considered the likely impact of the proposals on 

standards, wellbeing and curriculum delivery.  The proposer reasonably asserts that 

the proposal would not impact unfavourably on the current standards and provision 

at Ysgol Gwynedd, Cornist Community Primary School and Ysgol Owen Jones.    

The proposer has undertaken an appropriate equality impact assessment, which 
considers the impact of the proposal on vulnerable groups including those with a 
disability or special educational needs.   
 

 





Appendix 4

Revised (October 2015) Anticipated Timetable
 for Ysgol Maes Edwin, Flint Mountain Statutory Proposals 

 DATES School Terms KEY MILESTONES

16/6/2015 Summer 2015
Cabinet approval obtained to commence 

consultation

Start 14/5/2015 finish 
21/10/2015

Spring/Summer Term 
2015

Preparation of Impact Assessments: 
Transport, Equality, Welsh Language, 
Buildings fit for purpose, Community

Start 14/5/2015 finish 
21/10/2015

Spring/Summer Term 
2015

Preparation of Consultation document 
(including young person’s version) 

Start 21/10/2015

Finish 2/12/2015

Autumn/Winter Term 
2015

Consultation document published

Must be published on a school day

(42 days with 20 school days)

Winter Term 2015

Alternative School Council Children’s 
Consultation Confirmed by Ysgol Maes 

Edwin, Flint Mountain Governors 
(11/11/2015)

23/11/2015 Winter Term 2015
Governors/Teachers and Support Staff 

Consultation Event

23/11/2015 Winter Term 2015
Parents/Carers/Guardian Consultation 

Event

Between 21/10/2015 
and 2/12/2015

Autumn/Winter Term 
2015

School Council Children’s Consultation 
with nearby affected Primary Schools 

Between 21/10/2015 
and 2/12/2015

Autumn/Winter Term 
2015

Meeting with Headteachers and Chair of 
Governors with nearby affected 

Primary Schools 
Deadline 2/12/2015 Winter Term 2015 Consultation Ends

Deadline by 
30/12/2015

Winter Term 2015
Consultation Report must be published 

within  3 months

19/1/2016 Winter Term 2016
Cabinet – Seeking Approval to go to next 

phase (Statutory Proposals)

Start 29/1/2016

Finish 26/2/2016
Spring Term 2016

Statutory Notice (28 days, with 15 school 
days)

Must be issued on a school day

Deadline 26/2/2016 Spring Term 2016 End of Objection Period



Appendix 4

Deadline 26/2/2016 – 
24/3/2016 

Spring Term 2016 Objection Report published within 28 days 
and with Cabinet with 35 days

19/4/2016 Spring Term 2016 Cabinet Decision

March – May 2016 
(latest)

Spring Term 2016 Workforce Collective Consultation

May 2016 Spring Term 2016
Workforce Individual Consultation/Notice 

with Teachers/Staff

31/08/2016 Autumn 2016 Implementation of School Closure


	Agenda
	3 School Modernisation - School Standards and Reorganisation action 2013 - Ysgol Maes Edwin
	Appendix 1 - Compliance Statement
	Appendix 2 - Consultation Report
	Consultation Report English YME V3 161215
	APPENDIX A Consultation Recipient List
	APPENDIX B Summary of points raised at Consultation Meetings
	APPENDIX b
	APPENDIX B Summary of points raised at Consultation Meetings

	APPENDIX C School Council findings and YME Governors Letter
	APPENDIX C
	APPENDIX C School Council findings and YME Governors Letter

	APPENDIX D Findings from Meetings with Affected Nearby Schools
	APPENDIX D
	APPENDIX D Findings from Meetings with Affected Nearby Schools

	APPENDIX E Summary of Issues and Responses
	APPENDIX E Summary of Issues and Responses
	APPENDIX E Summary of Issues and Responses

	APPENDIX F Summary of responses to the Standard Response Form
	APPENDIX G Response from Estyn Ysgol Maes Edwin
	APPENDIX G
	APPENDIX G Response from Estyn Ysgol Maes Edwin

	APPENDIX H Assembly Members and Members of Parliament Responses
	APPENDIX H
	APPENDIX H Assembly Members and Members of Parliament Responses

	APPENDIX I Governors Responses
	APPENDIX I
	APPENDIX I Governors Responses


	Appendix 3 - Estyn Response
	Appendix 4 - Statutory Proposal Anticipated Timeline


